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Investment Manager’'s statement
Dear Unithoider,

The pandemic swept the globe in March 2020 causing unprecedented health and economic concerns.
Although policymakers had recourse to unprecedenied stimuius measures to limit the economic impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic, the global economy went into & recession during the calendar year 2020.

Policy measures limited the negative spili-overs from the “real” economy Lo the financial markets and major
US aquity indices reached record highs during the second gquarter of the financial year. Technology and
software were among the top-performing sectors amidst the behavioural shifts towards digitalisation during
the first half of the year although a rotation into value and cyclical stocks was observed in the second half.
Yields picked up in 2021 following persistently high inflation readings from supply-chain disruptions and
policy measures.

In Mauritius, the closure of the domestic frontier presented significant headwinds to economic growth given
the country's depencdence on the leisure and hospitality sector. With easing of restrictions and an
acceleration in the pace of vaccine roll-out, there was a positive shift In investor sentiment in 2021; the
SEMDEX prolonged its 2021 bull-run after the budget spsech hald in June 2021 which among others, laid
out the strategy in lerms of easing of trave! restrictions and paving the way for & bounce back of the tourism
industry. Domestic vields increased significantly during that particular month.

Despite the uncertain conditions that prevailed during the year, we proved once again thal we remain 2
reliable partner for all our stakehoiders; our investment philosophy and processes ensured that our in-house
funds delivered solid returns relative to their pre-set objectives. At equity leve!, performances were driven
hy our positioning in quality securities, target allocations to technology and software sectors, our diversified
approach and, discioiined monitoring and execution.

Globa!l economic activity has rebounded strongly since the onset of the pandemic but the environment
remains challenging amid the mutations of the Covid-19 virus, inflation concerns and Fed's potential
tapering of its assets purchase. in the US, the labour market has improved significanlly and despile inflation
readings remaining high, the Fed views this situation as transitory. As economic indicators trend towards
the Fed's objectives amid higher inflationary pressures, tapering may raise stock market volatility. In the
face of those challenges, we remain focused on our funds’ long-term objectives and believe that potential

catalysts such as stronger economic activity, upbeat profits and continued policy suppart may be positive
for the stock market.

We would like to thank the management team and all the stakeholders for their coniribution fowards
enhancing the value of our funds as well as the unithglders for their confidence in us.

Rl

SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid <} '

September 2021
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Investment Manager’'s Report

Performance commentary

For the financial year ended 30 June 2021, SEM Growih Fund regisierad a return of 26.0% agsins: 2
benchmark performance of 26.1%. Net assets increased from MUR 108.2M to MUR 144.7M over FY21
with net asset value per unit {(NAV) increasing from MUR 10.72 to MUR 13.51.

As an indication of the domaestic sguity market performance, SEMDEX and SEMTRI closed =t 1.863.22
points end 7,274.51 poinis, equivalent to increases of 12.1% and 13.8%, respectivaly during the financial
year 2021. On the global front, the MSC! All Country World index registered z performance of 37.2% in
USD terms. equivalent to 48.2% in MUR terms,

ANNUALISED RETURN

SINCE
1 YEAR 3 YEAR 5 YEAR INCEPTION
SBM Growih Fund (%) +26.0 +A7 +8.6 +5.7
Benchmark (%) +28.1 +5.9 +9.2 +8.5
FY 21 FY 20 FY 19 FY 18
SBM Growth Fund (%) +28.0 8.7 -2.2 +5.5
Benchmark (%) +26.1 -7.0 +1.3 +8.7

As at 30/6/21, the benchmark is 2 composite o 50% SEMTRI and 40% MSCI AT World index. The SEMTR! is 2 capitalisation weighted
index including all shares traded on the Stock Exchange of Maurftius. The MSCI AC World index is 2 free float-adiusied market
capitalisation weighted index that is designed to measure the performance of equity merkets in developed, emerging end daveloping

markets. Computation of benchmark retumn is based on the ohservalions as at montivend and the blended perfarmance of the
benchrark reflects monthly rebajancing.

VALUE OF MUR 100,000 INVESTED SINCE INCEPTION

140,000 - 135,086.00

135,000 -

130,000 - J

125,000 - -

120,000

215,000

=110,000

105,000

100,000

95,000

90,000 .
w <O <o) I~ B~ ™~ 0 22] 0 ] D o2 ] [ o - <~
BoE ox o= oToToROYTOTOToOToOToO8 9 9§ 0§ o
£ 3885883588585 528238°:5

Past performance s not a reliable indicator of future performance and unit prices may fluctuate with prevailing market
conditions and current performance may be higher ar lower than the performance cited. Eor more information con the fund's

cbjectives, risks, and strategy, please consuit its Prospectus. Latest unit prices are available on the website:
https:.'!nbfc.sbmgroup.muimamlﬁnanciai-productslfunds-performance

The graph iflustrates the performance of MUR 100.000 invested in the Fund 2t inceptian.
that dividends, if any, are re-invested and does
wall 2s taxes and other deductions.

The growth of investment amount assumes
not include sales charge but takes into zecoun: the running expenses of the Fund as
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Positioning and strategy

The strategic allocation of the Fund is based on
the Fund's investment obiectives and the
benchmark as per its Prospectus. During the
year, ihe Fund generally underweighted domestic
equities while being marginelly overweight in
international equities. This tactical deviation was
on the hasis of the national lockdowns which
adversely impacted domestic economic activity,
earnings sexpectations and valuation of certain
iisted companiss. The porifolio of international
equities gained from the strong rebound in
equities and the depreciation of the Mauritian
Rupee against the US dollar.

Despite the relative underweight in domestic
equities, the Fund was generally overweight in
financial stocks, such s MCB Group Limited and
SBM Holdings Lid, during the year based on
relative undervaiuation from forward estimates.
The broad strategy was io control exposure o the
tourism sector, directly via hotel stocks, and
indirectly via conglomerates. The previous
strategy of overweighting defensive stocks such
as Phoenix Beverages Lid and Innedis Lid, and
construction-related stocks ks Gamma Clvic Lid
and United Basalt Products Lid, was maintsined,

During the first half of the financia!l year, the
internationzl equities porolic wes overweight
sectors such as technology, software and
medical devices, Those tactical allocations
penefited from the pandemic but in the second
half, markets rotated into vajue stocks following
the wvaccination progress, higher inflation
expectations and rebound in global economic
activity. With 10Y yields moving above pre-
pandemic levels and expectations of more
aggressive opening of markets, positions in
software were trimmead in favour of small- and
mid-caps as weli as value stocks, mainly through
financials.

The top 5 holdings reflect the Investment
Manager's process in terms of the core-satellite
epproach as well as the house view on particular
stocks and ETFs.

ASSET ALLOCATION (% net assets)

30/06/2020 30/06/2021

Bomestic eguities............ 48.6 4A8.8
International equities........ 40.8 40.5
Alternative invesimeant....... 1.2 0.0
Cash & cash eguivatenis... 8.5 10.8
GEOGRAPRICAL ALLOCATION (% net assets)
Fund Index
Mauritius...oooive 585 80.0
North America................. 23.2 23.3
Europe.. e, 7.5 75
Asia Pacific..........oos £9 7.7
Central Asia....o.oocviii el 37 0.5
HhaTs ; 0.9 0.1
Latin America....................... 0.2 0.4
Africa Middle East. ................ 0.1 0.5
Domestic Fund Index
Banking & Insurance............... 278 245
CommEerce.....oveeei i 8.3 1.0
Industry ..o 8.5 5.3
Investment.............ooce e, 5.5 14.4
Leisure & Tourism.......c...oov.. 23 35
Property......ooviiiiii 0.2 0.2
SUGRT. e 0.1 0.3
TraNSPOrt... .occiivei e e, 0.0 0.2
international
Fimancial.........cooeieiae s 8.4 6.7
Consumer Non-Cyelical... ... 9.2 8.2
Consumer Cyclical................. 3.1 4.0
Industrial.....................ll 4.0 3.8
Technology........oovv e 8.7 7.0
Communications..................... 5.0 5.8
ENBTGY... i e 0.7 1.3
Basic Materials...... ............... 1.6 1.7
Utitities....ooe 07 1.2
CHhErs. ..o 1.1 0.1

TCP 5 HOLDINGS (% net assets)

30/06/2020 30/06/2021

MCB Group Lid................ 183 18.1
Vanguard S&P 500 ETF..... 5.7 5.8
SBM Hoeldings Lid............. 6.0 5.2
iShares MSCI ACWI ETF.... 52 50
iShares MSCI World ETF.... 6.0 4.5
TOTAL 41.2 38.8
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Economic Review

Economy

The global economy coniracted in calendar yaar 2020 with the growth rate estimated at -3.3%, after a series
of restrictions aimed at curbing the spread of the Covid-19 adversely impacted economic activity. Real GDP
growth among developed nations is estimated at -4.6% with the US, Germany, France, ltaly and Spain
registering respeciive rates of -3.5%. -4.8%, -8.0%, -8,9% and ~10.8%. Emerging and developing nations
posted -2.1%, dragged by China (2.3%), India (-7,3%), Brazil {~4.1%) and Russia (-3.0%). Supply-chain
disruptions significantly increased inflationary pressures in 2020 with global inflation estimated at 3.2%.
Domestically, econemic activity was impacted by the national lockdown in March and stringent fravel
restrictions; according to Statistics Mauriiius, real GDP declined by 14.9% in 2020. The contraction was
more severs in the tourism sector which adversely impacted foreign exchange fows, and the current
accourt deficll, The MUR weakened over the year, by 8.2% against the USD, standing at 40.15/USD in
June 2020 comparad to 42 .85/USD in Juns 2024,

REAL GDP GROWTH {iMF estimates, % YoY)

Group/  Advanced Euro EM & Emerging Sub- United China Indiz Mauritius

Couniry Area Developing Asia Saharan States

Africa
2620 -4.8 5.5 -2.1 -0.9 -1.8 -3.5 23 73 -15.8
2021(F) 56 4.8 8.3 7.5 3.4 7.0 8.1 8.5 86
2022(F) 4.4 4.3 5.2 5.4 4.1 4.9 57 85 5.2

In 2021, economic conditions significantly impreved with the continued support of policymakers, the on-
going vaccination progress and easing of restrictions in several sconomies. The International Monetary
Fund {IMF) revised upwards its 2021 real GDP growth projection for the US 10 7.0%, 0.8 percentage point
higher than its projections in April 2021, reflecting the relatively advanced pace of vaccines rofiout and
additional fiscal stimuius. The Biden administration has praposad two multi-year spending packages
equivalent te 18% of 2021 GDP: the American Families Plan {USD 2T) and the American Jobs Plan (USD

2.3T). aimed at supporting vulnzrable households, strengthening the recovery and improving labour
productivity.

Growth projections for 2021 in the Eurezone have been reviewed 0 4.6% by the IMF, 0.3 percentage point
higher than its April 2021 Warld Economic Outlook (WEQ) projection. As confinement measures are
gradually lifted, economic growth is projected {0 rebound strongly in the second half of 2021 boosted by
private consumption, substantial fiscal support and strong external demand. Germany, France, ltaly and
Spain, are projected to grow by 3.5%, 5.8%, 4.9% ang 6.2%, respeciively.
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Economic Review (Cont’d)

Economy (Cont'd)

Real GDP growth in developing and emerging economies is projected io outpace advancad economies
with a forecast of 5.3% in 2021, against 8.7% in IMF's April 2021 forecast. The relatively higher projections
among emerging nations are likely to be ied by the strong rebounds in Indiz and China, which are projected
tc grow by 9.5% and 8.1%, respestively. However, lack of access to vaccines and challenges in coniralling
renewed waves of the pandamic are [ikely fo dictate the growth path among those nations.

On the domestic economy, the IMF projects real GDP to grow by 6.6% in 2021 and 5.2% in 2022, The
recovery is expected to be driven by the construction and manufacturing sectors alongside accommodation
and food service activities. Monetary policymakers are likely fo maintain the accommodative monetary
policy stance in the short term to support economic activity and cushion against the likely disruptive effects
of the second wave of Covid-18.

According to the July 2021 WEO, ‘nflstion raies in developed economies and emerging marke! and
developing economies are estimated o be at 2.4% and 5.4% respectively. Higher infiation is expacted in
sorie emerging markets and developing economies on account of elevated food prices. Inflation is
expected to reiurn to its pre-pandemic levels in most nations in 2022, In the US, the PCE inflation rate is
expected to hover above 2% in the near term driven primarily by transitional factors, pent-up demand and
on-going supply-chain disruptions. Statements from central banks regarding outlook for monetary policy
remain key in shaping inflation expectations
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Financial markeis review

Equity markets

Adter hitting a 4-year low in March 2020 foliowing the declaration of Covid-18 as a pandemic and
implementation of jcckdown measures in several countries, markats recovered most of the losses by
August 2020, supported by unprecedentad monetary and fiscal stimuli by policymakers, globally. Near-zero
Federal Funds rate, trillions of dollar of fiscal support and positive vaccine news pushed US equities in
record territories during the first half of the financial year. Growth stocks outperformed the broader indices,
aided by technology and software stocks. During the second half of the year, rising inflation concerns raised
107 US yizlds which danted the performance of growth stocks and the Nasdaqg witnessed a correction in
February 2021. investors rotated into value and smailer caps, which cutperformed the broader market up
to May. As an indication, the S&P 500 index registered +14.4% over the period Jan-Jun 21 compared to
the S&P 500 Value index and Russell 2000 index which posted +17.0%. Falling yields towards the end of
the financial year and higher earmings expectations pushed key equity markets to record highs; overall, the
MSCI World index recorded +37.0% YaY.

In Mauritius, the SEMDEX did not irack the recovery of global indicas mainly on eccount of exacarbating
gconomic conditions, the uncerteinty surrounding the full opening of borders and potential spiflovers from
the tourism sector o other seciors. Following the budgetary measures in June and the announcement of
the reopening of borders, the SEMDEX posted relatively strong growth aided by tourism-related stocks. A

strong growth of +8.8% was registerad during the month of Juns 2021 only, driving 2 YoY rse of 12.2% in
the index

EQUITY INDEX PERFORMAMNCE (% local currency)

Index 1M 3M &M YTD 1Y 3Y 5Y

S&P 500, +2.2 +8.2 +14.4 +14.4 +38.8 +£8.1 +104.8
MSCEWorld..........c.... +1.4 +7.3 +12.2 +12.2 +37.0 +44 4 +82.5
MSCI World Smalt Cap.... +0.1 +4.8 +14.1 +14.1 +51.0 +35.0 +81.2
MSCH Europe................. +1.8 +5.4 +13.8 +13.6 +25.1 +17.2 +34.4
MSCIEM... ... -0.1 +4.4 +65.5 +6.5 +38.1 +28.5 +64.8
MSCIAC Asia............ 0.5 +2.2 +4.0 +4.0 +31.7 +25.3 +51.3
SEMDEX....ccocvii e +8.8 +i6.6 +13.1 +13.1 +12.2 -16.8 +8.4

DEMEX ..., +7.7 +23.4 +33.0 +33.0 +37.5 +18.8 +48.7

TOP INDEX LEADERS (% locai currency)

Globa! equities 1Y Domestic equities 1Y
Apple NG, oo, ¥51.2 F_’i}r?aiegmup 5.7
Microsoft +34.4 . +
COMDarooo Alteo Limited......._................ 6.7
Teslaine....oooi, +214.7 CielLimted ..............ccooil. +46.6
Amazon.cominG .............. +24.7 SBM Holdings Ltd ................. +15.0
Alphzbet inc - Class © +77.3 +32.7
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Financial markets review (Cont’d)

Bond markets
The Barclays Global Aggregate Bond index registered USD returns of +2.6% during the financial year 2021.

During the second and third quarters of FY21, the global bond market sold off following the global rolious of
vaceines, passage of the USD 1.9 trilfion fiscal stimulus package in the US and higher infiationary
pressures. in the last quarter of FY21, however, global bonds rallied as markets shrugged off inflation
concerns and the rapid spread of the more contagious Deita variant threatened the global economic
recovery. Emerging market debt performed particularly well during the fourth quarter while infiation-

protected Treasury securities posted strong returns amid higher inflation readings,

During the financial year, the Fed maintained its monthly essst purchase of USD 80Bn of Treasury
securities and USD 40Bn of mortgage-backed securiies while keeping the Fed Funds rate in the range of
0.0%-0.25%. it shifted to a more hawkish ouilook in June 2021 with the Federat Open Market Committee
(FOMC) anticipating two interest-raie hikes by the end of 2023. Faster than expected vaccine rofiout
combined with the iarge fiscal stimulus drove 10-year US Treasury yield higher by 108 bps from 0.66% in
June 2020 to 1.74% in March 2021, However, US Treasuries rallied over Q4:FY21 primarily due to concemns
over the spread of the Delta variant; with 10-year US Treasury yield tumbling to 1.47% in June 2021.

The Eurcpean Ceniral Bank (ECB) kept the interest rate unchanged on the main refinancing operations,
the marginal lending facility and the deposit facility at 0.00%. 0.25% and -0.50%, respactively. The
Governing Councll conducted net purchases under the pandemic emergency purchase programme (PEPP)
al a significantly higher pace during the last quarter of FY21. Bond yields were generally on the uptrend
mainly on account of Europe's vaccineg catch-up znd ratification of the EU Covid Recovery Fund -
NextGenerationEU. The corresponding yvields on 10-year German and Spanish bonds surged by 24 bps
and 38 bps 10 -0.21% and 0.41%. Conversely, yields on 10-year ltaian bond ticked lower in FY 2024 from
1.26% 1o 0.82%; amid optimism that the newly zppoinied Prime Minister of Haly, Mario Draghi, will push for
key structural reforms.

Yields on the domestic bond market trendad upward during the FY21 amid the shift in sentiment from the
pandemic-related shock, decrease in MUR excess liquidity and sovereign rating downgrade. On the
secondary market, yields on the 91D Treasury Bills increased by 27 bps to 1.01% aver the year Yields on
182D Treasury Bills and 384D Treasury Bills increased by 38 and 42 bps to reach 1.22% and 1.45%,
respectively. 3Y GOM Notes yield increased from 1.56% to 2.54% while 5Y GOM Bonds traded 23 3.12%
against 1.89% in June 2020. Long-term yields rose more aggressively with 10Y GOM Baond frading at 4.34%
as at June 2021, squivalent fo an increase of 186 bps. The vield on 15Y GOM bonds was also on the

upward trend standing at 4.76% against 2 preceding reading of 2.81%. The 20Y GOM Bond yields
increased from 3.05% to 5.14%.
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Bond markets (Cont’d)
BOND INDEX PERFORMANCE (% losa! currency)
Index k31 3M &M ¥TD 1Y 3Y 5Y
Sarclays Global Aggregate 08 #1382 32 26 4132 4123
Bond........ '
Barclays US Aggregate Bond ... +0.7 +1.8 -1.8 -1.8 03  +188 +181
Barcla_)(s US Govt Inflation-Linked All +0.7 35 16 16 85 4215 4234
Maturities Index. ..o
Barclays High Yield bond ................ +0.2 +3.1 +2.1 +2.1 +14.8  +21.0 +35._9
JP Morgan EMU IG Bond................ +04 0.7 -3.1 -3 -0.1 +9.4 +7.5
JP Morgan EM Bond ..., +0.8 +4.5 -1.0 -1.0 +7.5 +22.8 4284
FTSE Asian Broad Bond.................. +0.5 +1.4 -0.2 -0.2 4.1 4218 4247
MARKET YIELDS ¢33
Tenor United States Germany India China Mausitius
Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun- Jun-
21 20 21 20 21 20 21 20 21 20
a1D 0.05 0.13 -0.67 -0.83 3.80 3.74 - - 1.01 0.74
182D 0.04 0.18 -0.65 -0.61 3.88 3.75 2.06 - 1.22 0.85
384D 0.08 0.15 -0.68 -0.63 4.19 3.88 2.31 2.08 1.48 1.06
3Y 0.45 0.17 -0.67 -0.72 5.18 468 2.75 2.33 2.34 1.58
5Y 0.88 0.30 -0.59 -0.7 587 535 2.82 255 312 1.85
10Y 1.47 0.62 -0.28 -0.49 8.62 5.24 3.08 2.85 4.34 248
15y 1.85 0.54 -0.01 -0.31 5.88 8.52 - - 478 2.81
20Y 1.96 1.12 0.058 -0.20 7.00 5.61 3.31 3.45 5,14 3.05

Commodity markets

The S&P GSCi index registered 2 USD performance of +57.4% over the financial year 2021, mainly led by
the rebound in ol prices from about USD 40/Bbl in the mid-2020 o above USD 70/Bbi as at June 2021.
Brent and WT! prices rallied by more than 80% during FY21 mainly supported by sironger demand
conditions amid easing of lockdown resirictions and supply measures from OPEC. Natural gas gained
strongly as demand ouipaced supply. Precious metals registered mixed performances with Silver
advancing by +43.5% on the back of its dual precious metals and indusirial uses while Goid posted -0.6%.
Gold initizlly edged higher as investors hedged against the rising inflation threat but the bull run came tc an
end with the resurgence of the USD and strong economic data.

COMMODITIES

Jun-21 Jun-20 FY21 (% YoY}
WTI P
SIBDL. oo 73.47 39.27 w87
Brent 8/Bb.. .. 75,13 41,15 +82.6
MNaturalf gas USD - .
SmmBtu...... 3.65 175 +108.5
CopRar $/CZ ... oo 429.65 271.38 +58.3
Silver Spot S/0z ... 26.13 18.21 4435
Gold Spot $/0z............oc 1.770.11 1,780.96 -0.8
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Financial markets review (Cont'd)

Forex

The U.S. Dollar Index {DXY) traded sideways over FY21 with the USD initially strengthening on the back
of stimuius and higher long-term rates but eventually lost ground against other major currencies as longer
US yields eased. The weakening of the dallar was alse aftributable to investors pricing in an sarly Fed
tightening while the inflation outlock ang higher oil prices presented headwinds.

The euro appreciaied against the US doliar, buoyed by easing Covid-18 restrictions. rising consumer
coniidence and the vaccination orogramme. The pound sterling strengthened, backed by hopes that the
UK would ease its lockdown restrictions sooner than sxpected amid the fast vaccine rollowt. The pound
was also supported by & post-Brexit trade deal with the EU.

Among Asizn markeis, the Japanese Yen depreciated agzinst the dollar, unwinding an advance spurred
by demand for safe-haven assets during the pandemic. The acceleration in the vaccine rollout across the
world drove investors into riskier assets. The CNY strengthened in FY21 driven by & broadening US dellar
weakness amid China’s sirong economic rebound. Robust exporis growth resulted in & current account
surpius and supported the yuan. The Indian rupee appreciated against the US doller amid the improved
risk appetite in the region. The strengthening of the INR was also attributablz io foreign inflows through FDI
and FPL

In Mauritius, the MUR depreciated by 6.2% YoY against the USD; the central bank sold USD 25M =t Rs
42.50/USD on 28 June 21 against a sale of USD 25M at Rs 40.70/USD on 10 June 2. The currency
centinued 1o be under pressure amid the widening current aceount deficit and iravel restrictions,

FOREX
Jun-24 Jun-20 FYZ21 (% YoY)

Dollar index........ov i 92.44 97.38 -5.1
EUR-USD oot 1.1¢ 112 +5.6
GBP-USD........ e, 1.38 1.24 +11.5
USD-JPY L 1111 107.93 2.9
USD-CNY i 5.48 7.07 -8.86
USD-INR L. 74.33 75.51 -1.6

USD-MUR ..o, 42,65 40.15 +5.2
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Market Qutlook

The market environment remains highly uncertain with the spread of the delta variant and the rise in
inflationary pressures. International equity markets may be entering a phase of transition as earnings,
economic growth and policy stimulus peak. Botentiai headwinds include persistently high inflatian, garlier
than expected Fed tightening and higher taxes. Internationally, equity allocations are likely to be raised in
the “quality Tactor”, that is, invesiment strategies with focus on companies that exhibit higher profitability,
low lzverage and consistent earnings. From long-term and sirategic perspectives, the forsign equity
investments are expected o maintain a sector overweight in technology and & geographic overweight in
India.

In terms of domastic aquities, he trajectory of recovery in economic activity in 2021 is refiant on tourism
given its double digit direct and indirect contributions to econormic output. Se far, the pelicymakers have
supportad the secior through the moratoriums on loans, Government Wage Assistance Scheme and
lending from the Mauritius Investment Corporatien Ltd. in its last budget, it was announced that as from
Ociober 1. there will not be any entry restriction on vaccinated travelers providsd that their PCR iesis are
negative within 72 hours before departure. A prospective rebound in this sector's output during the
upcoming peak season is likely {o ease pressure on the MUR and on the debt-to-GDP ratio. Unless there
is & drastic change in market conditions, the domastic equity strategy is likely to remain constant, that is,
ovenweight select financial and construction-related stocks, control in/direct exposure to the hotel segment
and underweight the investment sector.
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The Trusize and Manager of SBM Growth Fund ("the Fund®) are pieased to submit their Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 30 June 2021, inclusive of other statutory disclosures.

INTRODUCTION

SBM Growth Fund is authorised by the Financial Services Commission under the Unit Trust Act, 1989 {as
amended); and established as a Unit Trust by 2 Trust Deed of the SBM Investment Unit Trust dated 5 June
2006 between SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid (The Manager) and DTOS Trustees Lid (The Trustes)
and subseguently by the Supplemental Deeds dated 20 Jung 2007, No. 5 dated O December 2015 and No.
6 dated 4 December 2017. It is an open-ended Collective investment Scheme established under Section 3
of the Unit Trust Act, 1988, authorised and regulated under the Trust Act, 2001, Securities Act, 2005 and
the Securities (Collective nvestmant Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulation, 2008 by the Finarcial
Services Commission,

The investment objective of the Fund is to seek significant long-term capital growth by investing in a broadly

diversiiied portiolio comprising of equity and equity related securities in both the local znd foreign siock
markets,

The Fund is & public interest entity as defined under the Financial Reporting Act 2004,

SBM Growth Fund's corporate governance framewerk includes its Trustee, Investment Committes,
Manager, the board of the Manager, Unitholders, and other stakeholders.

The orgenisation's structure is as follows:

Unit Holders

Board of Directors of SBMMAM
- Mr. Pierre d'Unienvilie

- Mr. Shailendrasingh Sreckesssoon
«  Mr. Roshan Ramoly

- Mrs. Reedhee Bhuttoo

- Mr. John Wallzce Mcilraith

Ltd

DTOS Trustees - Mr. Alain Eric Koo Khen Heong Vengpin

‘\

J

N

SBM Investment L__.-3) SBM Growth Fund
Unit Trust

PR SBM Mauritius Assst
Managers Ltd
{"SBMMAM™

Investment Committes of SBMMANM

- Mr. Alain Eric Koo Khen Heong Venpin

- Mr. Roshan Ramoly

- Mr, Richard Robinson

- Mr, Edward Vaughan Heberden
- Mr. Assad Abdullztiif
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INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED)

The Trustes, the Manager and the board of the Manager are fully committed to achieving and g‘ust‘aéning
the highest standards of corporate governance with tha aim of maximising long-term value creation for the
Unitholders of the Fund and all the stakeholders at large. Much emphiasis is on the conduct of husiness
practices that display characteristics of good torporate governance namely discipline, transparency,
independence, integrity, accouniability, fairmess, professionalism, ang social responsibility.

In zddition, the Trustes, the Manager, and the board of the Manager of the Fund continuously review the
implications of corporate governance principles and practices in light of their experience, regulatory
requirements and investor expectations. They hereby confirm that the Fund, as set out in this report. has
strived o comply in zll material aspects with the following legal and regulatory framework:

= Trust deed and subsequent Supplemental Deeds:

Terms of reference of the Trustes and sub-committes;

The National Code of Corporate Governance for Mauritius 2016 (the “Code™);

The Trust Act, 2001:

The Securities Act. 2005; and

The Securilies (Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-snd Funds) Regulations, 2008.

® ® & 9 90

The main roles as described under Principle 2, 3 2nd 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance are fulfilled
by the Board of the Manager.

The Board of the Manager has attempted to create the right balance and composition fo better mest the
objectives of the organisation. The Board is unitary and comprises of six Directors, of which four are
Independent and two are Executive Direciors, The Independent Directers do not have any relationship with
the majerity shareholders, therefore s sufficient number of directors do not have any relationship with the
organisation. The Board is Jed by Mr. Pierre Marrier ¢ Unienville, and all Board members currently reside
in Mauritius.

There exisis 2 transparent procedure in place regarding the appointment of prospective Directors which is
made in accordance with the skills, knowledge and expertise required on the Board. The re-clection of
Directors is made on an annual basis zt the Annual Meeting of Sharsholders. New Board members are

provided with an induction pack to provide them with sufficient knowledge and understanding of the Fund's
business.

All Board members are fully apprised of their Tiduciary duties as laid out in the Companies Act 2001,
TRUST DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS

The Trust Deed and subsequent Supplemental Deeds of the Fund comly with the provisians of the Trust
Act, 2001, The Securities Act, 2005 and The S=curities {Collective Investment Schemes and Closed-end

Funds) Regulations, 2008. A copy is available upon written request to the Manager 2t the Registered Office
of the Fund.

Salient features of the documents are:
No Unitholder shall be entitled ta:

 require the transfer {o him of any of the assets comprised in the Fund;

e interfere with or question the exercise of non-exercise by the Trustee or the Manager of the rights
and powers of the Trustee and the Manager in their dealings with the Fund or ts assets or any part
thereof;

s ati;r:d meetings whether as Unitholders or otherwise, or to vote or to take part in or consent to any
action concerning any property of any entity in which the Fund holds an interest;
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TRUST DEED AND SUPPLEMENTAL DEEDS {CONTINUED)

A Unitholder is entitled to any disiribution as approved and declared by the Manager as per provisions of
the Trust Deed.

THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER
Corporate Profile of the Trustee -~ DTOS Trustess Lid

DTOS Trustees Lid is a private company incomporated in Mauritius on 23 May 2003. DTOS Trustees Lid
is 2 wholly ownad subsidiary of DTOS Lid and is duly licensed by the Financial Services Commission to act
as a qualified trustee. It offers 2 complete and comprehensive range of trust services including frust
formation / migration, corporate trustesship, advice on tax, regulaiory and statutory matters, accouniing,
administration, and tax filings, where required,

Role of the Trustee

The Trustee has been appointed in order to ensure that the affairs of the Fund are being managed and
administered for the banefit of the Unitholders and to their best interasts ajong the foliowing principles:

= International best standards and regulatory compliance
Overseeing the conduct of the Fund's business and monitoring whether the business is being properly
managed at all levels according fo international best standards and in accordance to provisions of its
reguiztory regime:

¢ Accounts and risk management

Reviewing and, where appropriate, approving risk policy, financizl statements, annua budgets, business
plans and internat reports,

= Supervision of fund intermediaries
Supervising the fund intermediaries in their delivery of services to the Fund and ensure that such delivery
is done diligently and creates most value for the Unitholders of the Fund.

Corporate Profile of the Manager — SBM MAM

SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid ("SBM MAM") is licensed and regulaied by the Financial Services
Commission of Mauritius and holds a CIS Manager license. It is 100% owned by SBM Capiial Markets Ltd.
8BM MAM offers investment management services across a number of asset classes inciuding equities,
fixed income, private and alternative investments.

Role of the Manager 2nd its obligations

The Manager is appoinied by the Trustee and under the supervision of the Trustee, manages and

administers the Fund for the benefit of the Unitholders of the Fund in accordance with the Trust Deed and
Prespecius of the Fund.

Its obligations cover but are not restricted {c the foliowing:
« Conduct of Business

it shafl corad_uct iis.busirzess in a proper and efficient manner to ensure that any undertaking in the affairs
of the Fund is carried out in & proper, ethical, and sfficient mananer.

e Supervision of assets
The Manager shall manage and supervise ail assels of the Fund o the best interest of the Unitheolders,
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THE TRUSTEE AND THE MANAGER (CONTINUED)

+ Trade in units of the Fund - ~
it shall sell and issue units of the Fund in accordance to the provisions of the T rust Deed and Prospectus
and in so doing shall ensure that the interests of unit-holders are protected at alf imes.

THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Trust Deed provides for the establishment of an Investment Commiites composed of 2t least 3 parsons
and not more than 8 persons. The main purpose of the Committes is to issus guidalines and advise the
Manzager on investments.

Currently, the Committee is composed of 5 members and meets on a quarlerly basis. It reviews the
performance of the Fund, ensures that the investment strategy complies with the provisions of the Trust
Deed and Prospactus.

Managing Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transactions

The Fund adheres to the Group Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transactions policy o assist the
Board of the Trustea and Manager in identifying and disclosing actual and potentizl conflicts and halp
ensure the avoidance of conflicts of interest, wheare necessary.

For the related party transaction, please refer to Note 18 o the Financial Statements.
Information, information technology and information security policy

The Trustee and Manager confirm that information, information technology and information security policy
exist within the Group.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Manager Is responsivle for the risk management practice and procedures in place within the operating
structure of the Fund for risk management. The Manager also defines the overall strategy for risk iolerance
and is responsible for the design, implementation and review of a risk management framework. processes
and management of risk as parformed by the intermediaries and service providers of the Fund. Parnt of the
responsibility to moniter the framework end processes has been delegated to the Investment Commitiee
which conducts reviews on a quarterly basis.

The Fund's policy on risk managemant encompasses all business risks including operational, technology,
business continuity, financial, compliznce and reputational risks which could influence the achievement of
the Fund's objectives. In context, a due diligence exercise is undertaken in collaboration with nominated
intermediaries to ensure that they have the capebility to commit on the implementation of approprigte
customised procedures and controls for the purpose of the Fund.

The risk management mechanisms in place includs:

«  Asystern for the on-going identification and assessment of risk;
= Development of strategies in raspect of risk and definition of acceptable and non-accepiable levels of
risk;

= The communication of rigk management policies across the multiple parties and functionaries involved
in the procasses:
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL {CONTINUED)
RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)}

- The implemeniztion of a documented system of processes with approprigte controls and approval
mechanism that closely align the control effort to the nature and imporiance of the risk;

- Processes to reduce or mitigate identified risks and contain them within the levels of tolerance defined
and agreed by the Board of the Manager;

- Compliance reports are preparad and prasented to the hoard of the Manager on 2 quarierly basis; and

> Intemnal audit functions exist at the level of the Manager and Fund Administratcr whereby the processes
pertaining to the affairs of the Fund are scrutinised and undergo audit reviews. Quarterly reports are
prepared and presented to the boards of the Manager and Fund Acministrator.

Risk expeosure of the Fund falls within the following areas:

Operational risks

Operational risk s defined as risk of direct or indirect ioss resulting from inadeguate or failed iniernal
process, people, end systems or from external events. Asseis of the Fund are properiy saieguarded, and
reporting infrastructures are adeguate and effective for timely and accurate data colizction.

Compliance risks

Compliance risk is defined as risk of loss from failure to comply with regulations governing the conduct of
an organisation's business. It is a composite risk made up of risk of legal or regulatory sanctions, financial
loss, or loss of reputation.

Technology risks

Tachrology risks include hardware and software failures, sysiem development and infrastructure issues,
To varying degrees, the Fund is reliant upon certain technologies and systems for the smooth and eficient
running of its operations. Disruption to these technologies could adversely affect its efficisncy.

Business continuity risks
This relates to losses from failed transaction processing and process managemeant,

Reputational risks

This relates to losses due to unintentional or negligent failure to mest 2 professicnal obligation to specific
clients or from the nature or design of a product,

Financial risks
The primary sources of financial risks faced by the Fund are risks inherent o ifs investment activities.
invesiment values and raiurns are dependent on the performance of finzncial markets and may adversely

affect the Fund's financial results. The financial risks faced by the Fund and management of these risks are
further discussed in the notes to the financial siztements.

INTERMAL CONTROL

The Manager and the board of the Manager acknowledge their responsibiléy for internal control and work
closely together and with the Fund Administrator to put in place 2 system of internzal controls which is
designed to provide the Trusise with reasonable assurance that the assets are safeguarded; that operations
are carried out effectively and efficiently; that the financial controls are reliable and in compliance with

applicable laws and regulations and that material frauds and oiher irregularities are either prevented or
detected within a reascnable time,
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RISK GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL {CONTINUED}
INTERNAL CONTROL {CONTINUED)

The Manager and Fund Administrator prepare compliance and risk monitoring reporis that are subrnii@ed
to the Investment Commitiee and Board of the Manager on a quarierly basis for their review, following
which recommendations are made to the Manager on an on-going basis. Preventive and corractive actions
are then duly implemented o address intemnal control deficiencies and opportunities for improving the
systems.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

in order to enhance good governance and transparency, the Group has a Whistleblowing policy. The main
aims of the policy are to provide an avenue for raising concemns related to fraud, corruption, and any other
misconduct. The policy addressas the following:

= Protection of and Remedies for Whistleblowers and Complainanis;
= Channels and Procadureas;
= Hotline, Email and PO Bex facilities

REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY

The Manager is required to ensure that adequate accounting records are maintained so as to disclose at
any time, and with reasonable adequacy, the financial position of the Fund. The Manager is also responsible

for taking reasonable steps fo szfeguard the assets of the Fund to prevent and detect fraud and other
irreguiarities.

The Manager must present financial staiements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of

the affairs of the Fund, and the results for that period. In preparing such financial statements, the Manager
is required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a consistent basis using reasonable and prudent
judgment
» state whether or not the Trust Act, 1989, the Trust Act, 2001 and Internations! Financial Reporting
tandards (IFRS) have been adherad to and explain material tdepartures thereto
= use the going concern basis unless it is inapproprizte.

The Manager acknowledges their responsibility for ensuring the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and the responsibility of externa! auditors to report on these financial statements.
The Manager is responsible for ensuring the maintenance of adequate accounting records and an effective
system of internal controls and risk management and ihe selection of appropriate accounting policies.

Nothing has come to the Manager's attention, to indicate any material breakdown in the functioning of the
internal controls and systerns during the period under review, which could have a material impact on the
business. The financial statemenis are prepared from the accounting racords on the basis of consistent

use of appropriate accounting records supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates that
fairly present the state of affzirs of the Fund.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and there is no resson 1o believe
that the Fund will not continue as a going concern in the next financial year,
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REPORTING WITH INTEGRITY (CONTINUED)

The Manager confirms that in preparing the financial statements, it has:

= selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently

= made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

« foilowed the international Finansial Reporting Standards

s prepared the financizl staiements on the going concern basis

= adhered to the Code of Corporate Governance in gl material aspects and reasons have been provided
for non-compliance.

The Manager is responsible for keeping propsr accounting records, which disclose with reasonab_ie
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Fund and {o enable them to ensure that the financial
siaterments comply with the Trust Act <989, the Trust Act 2001, the Securities Act 2008, the Securities
{Collective Investmant Schemes and Closed-end Funds) Regulations 2008 and have been prepared in
accerdance with the Intermational Reporting Standards. The Manager is also responsible for safeguarding
the assels of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable staps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irreguleritias.

The Annual report is published in full on the website of the Manager of the Fund.
AUBIT
Internal Audit

The Non-Banking Financial cluster (NBFG") of the SBM Group has ifs own permanent Internal Audit
function reporting to the Risk Commities of SBM (NBFC) Holdings Lid, the holding Company of NBFC. The
internal audit team comprises of three fully qualified accountants. The internal auditors provide assurance
about the sifectiveness of the risk management and control processes in place and they maintain their
independence by reporting o the Risk Committes. The Head of intermal Audit has regular access io the
Trustee and Manager and the chairperson of the Risk Committes, There were no restrictions on zccess by
the internal auditors to records or members of the managament team,

The Audit and Risk Commitiees of NBFC are chaired by a Chartered Accountant and the Committee
comprises of independent members with more than 30 yeers' experience in the Financial Services industry.
The Risk Commitiee reviews and approves Internal Audit's plan and resources and evsluates the
effectiveness of the function. The Audit and Risk Commitiess ensure that 2 consistent risk-based audit
meihodolegy is applisd. The audit reports are thereafter tabled at the Commities and the findings and
methodclogies are reviewed and discussed by the Risk Committee,

As the third line of defense, the role of internal audit is to provide independent, objective assurance services
designed to add value and improve NBFC eniities’ operations. Audits are carried out to review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the group's system of internal controls, as per the Board zpproved risk-
based audit plan. In conducting reviews, the internal Auditors are alert to indicators of fraud and
opporiunities that could allow fraud, such as contro! weaknesses. In doing so. the Internal Auditors obtain
reascnable assurance that business objectives for the process under review are being achieved and
material control deficlencies are detected. Upon completion of each review, a formal report detailing the
audit findings and the appropriate recommendations are issued io the chairpersen of Risk committes and
the Chief Executive Officer. Any deviation in policies and non-performance of intarnal conirols are duly
reporied and discussed at Risk Committes level. Corrective actions are promptly taken and regutar follow
ups as well as reporting performad by Internal Audit until compiste resolution.
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AUDIT (CONTINUED)
External Audit

Deloitte was appointed as stetutory auditors of the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2021. The
Trustee and Manager assess and review on a regular basis the independence of the external auditor.

The fees paid to the external auditors for audit services were Rs., 119,375 (2020; Rs, 125,622). The external
auditors did not provide any nen-audit services during the financial year.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREMOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS

SHAREHOQLDING

Holding Structure - 30 June 2021

As at 30 June 2021, the Fund had issued 10,712,685.27 units for a total fund size of Rs. 144,713,478, The
NAV sner unit of the Fund as at 30 June 2021 was Rs. 13.5086.

The NAV per unit since launch are as follows:

e T Navpsruat
Launch {4 Fabruary 2018) 18.00

June 20156 9.81

June 2017 11.15

June 2018 11.78

June 2012 11.50

June 2020 10.72

June 2021 13.81

Unit-holders’ Relations and Communication

Unitholders are strongly encouraged to visit the wabsite of the Manager o remain updated on the Fund’s
inftiztives/prajects, goals, and prices.

Anaiysis of ownership
The Fund had 219 Unitholders as at 30 June 2021. There was 2 decrease of 7 unit-holders as compared
1o financial year 30 June 2020

A breakdown of the category of Unitholders and the unit ownership as at 30 June 2021 is set out beiow:
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER KEY STAKEHOLDERS {CONTINUED}

SHAREHOLDING (CONTINUED)

Market Valug:(Rsh: o S?:Q:oégs 7 Nuirhber of shares ownes ¢ % Holdings
0-59,899 R 220,866.87 2.06%
60,000 - 99,989 26 128,784.22 1.21%
100,000 - 124.999 1 8.733.81 0.08%
125,000 - 199,999 40 416,082.11 3.88%
200,000 - 469,998 28 700,074.86 B.54%
500,000 - £89,99% 5 220,879.52 2.08%
1M - 1,499,099 3 283,623.37 2.65%
1.5M - 1,899,599 . - 0.00%
2M - 2,889,998 2 332,610.76 3.10%
Above 20 M 3 8,399,020 94 78.41%
Total 218 10,742.695.27 100.00%

Unit-hoiders’ Agreement ]
To the best knowledge of the Manager and Trustee, there has besn no such agreement with any of its
Unithoiders for the year under review.

Unit-holders’ Calendar

The Fund has planned the foliowing forthcoming avenis:

Reporiing date
Publication of year end resulis
Declaration of dividend

30 June 2021
Within 90 days from end of 30 June 2021
Within 3 months from end of 30 June 2021

Dividend Policy
The objective of the Fund is {0 pay out all income available for distribution on a yearly basis. In that respact,
income excludes capital gains, both rezlised and unrealised, While fixing the dividend rate, the Trustee and

Manager also take into account other considerations that might afiect the sconomic interests and proper
long-term running of the Fund.

For financial year 2020/2021, SBM Growth Fund did not pay any dividend.
OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

The foliowing agreements have been approved by the Trusiee and Manager and are still effective as at end
of the financial year 2020/21:

¢ Custody Agresment with the SBM Bank (Mauriiius) Limited.
¢ Administretion Agreement with SBM Fund Services Lid.
= Fund Management Agreement with SBM Mauritius Asset Managers Lid.



SBM GROWTH FUND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024 3(x)

Employee Share Option Scheme
The Fund has no share opticn plans.

Directors and Officers Liahility Insurance

The Fund has subscribed 1o a Directors and Gfiicers Liability insurance policy in respect of lagal actions ar
liability which may arise against its Trustee, Manager, and officers. The cover doss not provide insurance
against fraudulent, malicious, or wilfu! aets or omissions,

Ethics and Business Conduct

Under regulatory supervision of the Finaneial Senvices Commissicn, all officers and agents of the Fund are
expected to maintain a high level of ethics in their behaviour and business transactions. The fransactions
of the Fund are carrizd out as per its Marzger's and Fund Administraicr's Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, epplicabie to all direst and indirect employzes whe dsal with the mattars of the Fund,

The Fund is Involved in the provision of services end its operations do net materially impact on the
environment. Investing strategies include investment in sound, ethical and environmental frizndly entities,
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Trustee’s and Manager's Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Trustee and Manager ars required to ensure that adequate accounting recards are maintained so as
to disclose at any time. and with resscnable adequacy, the finencial position of the Fund. They are alsc
responsibie for taking reascnable steps 1o safeguard the assets of the Fund to prevent and detect fraug
and other irregularities.

They must present financizl stetemenis for each financial year, which: give 2 irue and fair view of the affairs
o the Fund, and the results for that pariod. In preparing such financial statements, they are reguired to:

- select suRable accounting policies and apply them on & consistent basis using reasonaple and prudent
judgment

- stale whether or not the Trust Act, 2001 and Internaticnal Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRS) have
been adhered 1o and explain material depariures thereto

- use ihe going concern basis unless it is inappropriats.

Tne Manager acknowledges its respensibility for ensuring the preparation of the financial siatements in
accordance with IFRS and the responsibility of extermnal auditors to report on these financial statements.

The Manager is responsile for ensuring the mainienance of adequaie accounting records and an effective
syster: efiniemal controls risk management and the seleciion of appropriate accounting policies,

Nothing hes come 1o the Trustee's and Manager's aiention, to indicate any material breakdown in the
functioning of the internal controls and systemns duwring the period under review, which could have a material
impact on the business. The finzncial statements are prepared from the accounting records on the basis of
consistent use of apprepriate accounting reserds supporied by reasonzble and prudent judgments and
estimaies that fairly present the siate of affairs of the Fund.,

The financial statements have been prepared on a geoing concern basis and there is no reason to believe
thai the Fund will not continues 2s & going concarn in the next financizl year.

The Trustes and Managar confirm that in preparing the financial statemants, they have:

- selected suitable accouniing policies and applied them consistently
- made judgments and esfimates that are reasonable and prudent

- Tollowed the Internstional Financial Reporting Standards

- prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis

- adhered o the Code of Corporate Govemance in all material aspects and rezsans have been provided
for non-compliance,

The Trustee and Manager ars responsible for keeping proger zecounting records, which disclose with
reasonable ascuracy at any time the financial posttion of the Fund and to enable them ic ensure that ths
financial s1atements comply with the Trust Act, 1989, the Trust Act, 2001, the Securities Act, 2005, the
Securities (Collective lnvestment Schemes and Clased-end Funds) Regulations, 2008 and heve been
prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards. They are also rasponsible for

safeguarding the asssts of the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for tha orevention and detaction
of fraud and other irregularities.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

{Section 75 {3) of the Financial Reporting Act)

Name of PIE: Tha SBW Growth Fund

Reporting Period: Year ended 30 June 2021

We, the Trustee and Manager of the SBM Growih Fund (the “Fund™} confirm that to the best of our
knowledge, the Fund has complied with most of its gbligation and requirements under the Code of

Corporate Govarnance sxcepi for Principle 2, 3 and 4 of the Code of Corporate Governance.

Tne reason for non-compliance is that the Fund is set-up &s 2 Trust and not & company. In this context, i
has no board of directors, no board committees, and no company secretary.

However, the main roles as described under Principiz 2, 2 2nd 4 of the Cade of Corporgie Governance are
fulfilied by the Beeard of the Manager, SBM Mauritius Asset Mangagers Lid, 25 described shove,

On behelf of the Trusiee and Miznager

On behalf of the Manager
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Independent auditor’s report to the Members of 4

SBM Growth Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SBM Growth Fund {the “Fund”} set out on pages 6 to 32, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as
at 30 June 2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) and comply with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act
2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our respeonsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standard Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International independence Standards) (the "IESBA Code”}, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Trustee and the Manager are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate
Information, the Manager’s Report, and the corporate governance report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infermation and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act 2004 is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate
Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement
of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the annual report, the Public
Interest Entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act 2004, complied with the requirements of the
Code.

Responsibilities of trustee and manager for the Financial Statements

The trustee and the manager are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Repoerting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and they are also responsible for such internal control as the
trustee and the manager determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustee and the manager are responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustee and the manager either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The trustee and the manager are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

] Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustee’s and the manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

e  we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Fund other than in our capacity as auditor and tax advisor;

e we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and

° in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as appears from our examination of
those records.

Use of this report

This report is made solely to the Fund’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius

Companies Act 2001. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Fund’s members those matters

we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

DQJ oud-
Deloitte LLK A e, FCCA
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC

20 September 2021



SBM GROWTH FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POBITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 8.
2021 202G
Notes MUR MUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents 15,248,852 8,742,307
Other receivabies & 831,510 824,683
Financizl assets at fair velue through other comprehansive 7 128,981,418 98,845,672

TOTAL ASSETS 145,039,884 108,512,682

LIABILITIES
ther payables 2 325,403 338,275
Income tax kability 16 (@) - 73,628
326,403 412,903

REDEEMABLE UNITS

Redeemable units
Accumuiated losses
Fair value reserve

111,231,448 105,143,810
(3,261,620)  (2,554,504)

29,832,520 257,802
Other reserve 6,703,830 8,352,744
5 144,718,476 100,089,758

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

145,038,881 108,512,862

“ ‘\'.\ .,‘:.”_ '.

,,./_,_ o

Signet on behaif of the Mana(

The niotes on pages 10 to 32 form parl of these financial statements.



SBM GROWTH FUND

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE {NCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 7.
Notes 2024 2020
MUR MUR
INCOME
Dividend income 11 1,315,393 1,886,551
Cther income - 17,650
Foreign exchange gain 351,088 1,271,800
1,666,479 3,278,001
FUND EXPENSES
Manager's fees 12 1,198,281 1,148,583
Administrator's fees 6 149,785 143,679
Reagistry fees 14 149,785 143,679
Trustee's {ees 13 117,058 112,289
Custodian fees 15 140,310 325,918
Auditor's fees 119,375 125,622
Legal & Professional fees 65,548 51,920
Sundry expenses 5,167 7,327
rovision no longer required written back - (332,645)
1,945,307 1,727,352
{LOSSYPROFIT BEFORE TAXATION {275,328) 1.548,648
Income tax income/(expense} 10 (D) 22,798 {77,461)
(LOSS)PROFIT AFTER TAXATION {258,030} 1,471,188
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOSS)
Cther comprahensive gain/floss) that will nat be reclassified to profit or loss
Gzin on disposal of financiat assets held at FVOQ! 2,070,202 1.857.317
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asseis held at EVOG) 27,611,708 (11.454,746)
Net fair value gain/(loss) on finencial assets held at FYOC! 7 28,681,911 {5,597 .429)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE UNITS 29,425,881 {8,126,241)

The notes on pages 190 to 32 form pan of these financial sietements.




SBM GROWTHE FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSET:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

As at 1 July 2018
lssue of units
Redzsmption of units

Change in nat assais aliribuiable 1o
holders of redeemahie units for the ysar

Foreign exchange gain transier”
As at 30 June 2020

As at 1 July 2020

tssue of unils

Redemptlion of uniis

Change in net assets aftributable 1o
holders of redeemeable units for the year

Foreign exchange gain irensfer”

As at 30 June 2021

*Note

Non-distributable reserves

(10,148,353)

Redeemable  Accumulated Fair value Qther
units losses reserve reserve Total
MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
103.801.284 (2,853,8582) 9,855,338 5,080.944 115,883,874
11.480,678 - - - 11,490,879

] . - {10,148,353)

- &71,188 (9,507.429) - (8,126,241}

- {1,271.800) - 1.271.800 -
105,143,610 {2,654,504) 257,808 6,352,744 108,088,758
105,143,610 (2.654,504) 257,809 6,352,744 109,085,759
7,686,850 - - - 7,688,956
(1,499,118} - - - {1,499,118)
- {256,030} 29,581,911 - 28,425,881

- {351,0886) - 351,086 -
111,331,448 (3,261,620) 29,838,820 8,703,830 144,713,478

As per the Fund's prospecius, capitsl gains arising from changas in the valus of investments, both realised and
unrzalised are credited to non-distributable reserves and shall not be available for distribution as dividends. Capital
losses arising from changes in the value of invesimants will be debiied to fair value raserve and shall not be offset
against income received, All other undistributable income and expenses are transfarred to other raserve.

The notes on pages 10 to 32 form part of these financial statements.



SBM GROWTH FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

0

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loss)/Profit befare tax

Adjustment for

Dividend income

Foreign exchange gain

Operating loss before working capital changes
Dacrease [ {Increass) in other receivaties
Decrezse in other payablas

Purchase of financial 2ssets at FVOC!

Proceeds Tom dispesal of financial assets at FVOCH
Dividend received

Tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

lssue of units
Redemption of units

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT START OF YEAR

Foreign exchange gain

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The notes on pages 10 to 32 form part of these financial siatements,

Notes

~1 =~

10

2021 2020
MUR WMUOR
(278,828)  1.548,548

{1,315,383) (1,086,551
(351,086)  {1.271.800)
{1.945,307)  (1,708,702)
725,449 (734,808)
(12,872)  {1.626,899)
(31,664,338)  (60.879.336)
31,230,502 52720814
683,717 2,082,311
(983,449) {128,520)
(50,530) (4.542)
(1,034,279) (133,462)
7,685,886 11,480,679
{1,489,118)  (10,148,353)
5,187,338 1,342,326
5,153,559 1,200,164
8,742,307 7,261,343
351,088 1,271,800
15,246,952 £.742.307




SBIV GROWTH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 10,

2.1

LEGAL FORM AND PRINCIFAL ACTIVITY

The SBM Growth Fund ("the Fund™) was constituted under the SBM Investment unit Trust on § December
2015 in accordance with the terms of the Trust deed and the Supplementa! deed & and the Securities Act
of Mauritius. The SBM Growth Fund is 2 Coliective lnvestment Scheme constituted as & Trust which
invests primarily in loca! and foreign 2quity linked securilies, unit trusts, mutual funds and other collective
investment schames, fixed income securities, money market instruments and cash.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
{IFRSs)

In the current year, the Fund has applisd ali of ihe new and revised standards and interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Beard (“|ASB") and ths International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRICT) of the IASB that are relevant to its operalions and sffective for
accounting periods baginning on 1 July 2020.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED

(a8} Standards and amendments {o existing standards eifective 1 July 2020

IAS 1 Presentation of Finencial Statements - Amendments regarding the definition of
material

IAS 8 Accounting Policles. Changes In Accounting Estimaies and Errors - Amendments
regarding the definition of material

AS 39 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues
in the context of IBOR reform

IFRS7 Financiat Instruments: Disclosures - Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues
in the context of IBOR reform

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Amenoments regarding pre-raplacement issues in the context
of IBOR reform

Conceptual Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1. IAS 8, A5 34, IAS 37, IAS

Framework 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 18, IFRIC 20, FRIC 22, and SiC-22 o update those
pronouncements with regards io references to znd quotes from the framework or to
indicate where they refer to a different version of the Conceptual Framework

22 NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(b} Mew standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have not
been early adopied

At the date of authorisation of these finencial statements. ths following relevant new and revised
Standards were in issue but effective on annual pariods beginning on orf after the respective dates
as indicated:

IAS 1 Bregentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the classification of
lizbilities (effective 1 January 2023)

AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendments regarding the disclosure of
accounting policies (effective 1 January 2023)

IAS B Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Error - Amendments
regarding the definiion of accounting estimates (effective 1 January 2023)

IAB 12 incorne taxes - Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning
obligetions (effective 1 January 2023)
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3.

3.2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs) ({CONTINUED)

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
{CONTINUED}

{b) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 July 2020 and have not
bean early adopted (Continued)

IAS 39 Finencial Insiruments: Recognition and Measurement - Amendments regarding
replacement issues in the context of the [BOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosuras - Amendments regarding replacement issues in
the contexd of ihe IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021)

IFRS & Finansial Instruments - Amendments resulting from replacement issuas in the context
of the IBOR reform (effective 1 January 2021}

IFRS ¢ Finzncial [nstruments - Amendments resulfing from Annual Improvements fo FRS
Standards 2018-2020 (fees in the '10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial
liabilities) {effective 1 January 2022)

The direciors anticipate that these Standards and Interpretetion will be applisd on their effective dates in
future periods. No potantial impact is expected upon application of these amendments.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financia! stetements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporiing
Stendards {"IFRS"} as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("ASBY).

The financial staiements have been prepared on a hisiorical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income. which are measurad at fair value.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{8) Foreign currency transiation

The financial statemenis are presented in MUR (presentation currency) which is also the currency of the
primary economic environment in which fne Fund operates {functional currency). The Fund determinas iis

own functional currency and ems included in the financizl statements of the Fund are measured using
that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transaciions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Fund at their respective functional currency
spot rates prevailing at ihe date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monstary asszis and lizbilitles denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional

currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date, Al differences arising on settisment or
retranslation of monatary items are taken to profit or loss.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() Foreign currency transiation {Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary Hlems that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are transtaied using the sxchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on refrenslation of non-monetary items s treated in line with the
recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., franslation differences on ilems whose
fakr vaiue gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or prefit or loss i also recognised in
other comprehensive Income or prof or loss, raspectively).

(b} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Fund's right to receive the payment is established.
(c} Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and ligbiliies are measured at the amount expected o be recovered from or
paid to the taxation auvthorities. The tax rates and tax laws used io compute the amount are thoss that are
enacied or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

Current income {ax relaling fo items recognised directly in equily s recognised in equity and not in profit or
loss. Management periodically evaluaies positions taken in the tex returns with respect o situations in

which applicable tzx regulations are subject fo interpratation and establishes provisions whers
appropriate.

Deferrad tax

Deferred tax is provided using the iiability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financizl reporiing purposes &} the reporting date.

Deferred tax lizbilities are recognised for ail taxable temporery differences, except:

. Where the deferred tax iability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not & business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profii nor taxable profit or loss;

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investmenis in subsidiaries, associates
and inleresis in joint ventures, where the timing of the reverszl of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probabls that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeatble future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses. Deferred iax assels are recognised fo the extent that it is probable that
texable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused {ex credits and unused fax losses can be uiilised, except;



SBM GROWTH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 13.

3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEDR)
tc} Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

° Where the deferred tax assel refating to the deduciible temporary difference arises frora the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction that s nota business cornbination and, 2t the tima
of the ‘ransaction. afects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tex assets are recagnised only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the joresesable future and taxable profit
will be aveilable against whish the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assats is reviewed at each reporting date and raduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow il or part of the deferred
tex asset to be utifised,

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reessessed at each reporiing date and are recognised o the exteni
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will sllow the deferrad tax asset to be recovered.

Defarrad tax zssets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expecied to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the fsbility is setfled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting datz.

Deferred tax relating o hems recognised oufside proft or loss is recognised cutside profit or loss.
Deferred tax Hems ere tecognised in corelation to the underlying frensaction either in other
comprehensive incomes or directly in equity.

Daferred tax asseis and deferred tax liabifities are ofiset, if a legally enforceable right exists to setl off
current tex assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acauired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteriz for separate
recognifion at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and
circumstances changed. The adjusiment would either be treated as a reduction to gocdwill (ss long as it
does not exceed goodwill) if it incurred during the measurement period or In profit or loss.

{d) Financiat iInstruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising 2nd measuring financiel assets, financial fiabilities and some
coniracts to buy or sall non-financial itemns. This standard replaces {AS 39 Financial Instruments:

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assels are classified, at inifial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
velue threugh other comprehensive income (OC1).
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3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(d) Financial instruments {Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Inifial recognition and measurement {Continued;

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash
flow characieristics and the Fund's business model for managing them. The Fund inifially measures &
financial assat at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or Joss,
transaction cosis.

In order for a financial zsset to be classified and measured ai ameriised cost or fair value through OCH it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY on the principal
amount ouistanding. This assessment is referrad fo as the SPP test and is performed at an insirument
level,

The Fund’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how # manages s financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash fows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows. selling the financial assets, or both,

Purchases of sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame sstablished by
regulaticn or convention in the market place (reguiar way trades) are recognised on the trade/setiiement
date of the equity instruments, i.e., the date that the Fund commits to purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent measurement

For nurpsses of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Financial 2ssets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
] Financial assets at fair value through CCl with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments).

° Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (2quity instrumenis).

* Financial zssets ai fair value through profit or loss,

Financial assets at §air value throuoh other comprehensive income fecuity insttuments)

Upen initfal recognition, the Fund can elect to clessify irrevocably its equily investments as equily
instruments designated at fair value through OCl when they meet the definiion of equity under 1AS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and lossas on these financiai assets are naver recyclad to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when
the Fund benefis from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which

case, such gains are recorded in OCL Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not
subject to impairmaent essessment.

The Fund has elected to classify irrevocably its listed and non-listed equity investments under this
category.
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTINUED)

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
(dy Financial instruments {Continued)
Financial assets (Continued}
Subsequent measurement {Continued)

Financial asseis at amorlised cost

The Sund measures financial aszets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are mat

s The financial 2sset is held within & business model with the cbjective to hold financial assets in
rder o collzat contraciual cash flows; and

s The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specifizd dates to cash flows ihat are solely
paymenis of principal and interest on the prinsipal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amorised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interast rate (EIR)
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are rsgognisad in profit or loss when the assetis
derecognised, modified or impairad.

The Fund's financial assats at amortisec cost include cash and cash equivalents and other recelvables.
Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where appliceble, 2 part of a financial asset or part of a Fund of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e., removed from the Fund’s statement of financial pesition) when:

g The rights io receive cash flows from the assel have expired; or

= The Fund has trensferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from the esset or has assumed an
obligation fo pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to 2 third pariy under a ‘pass-
through' arrangement; and either (2} the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither iransferred nor refained substantially ali the risks and
rewards of the asset, bui has transferred control of the assetl.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to recsive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass
through arrangement, it evaluates i, and to what extent, it hac refained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor refainad substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor iransferred control of the asset, the Fund continues to rzcognise the fransferred asset to tha
extent of its continuing involvement,

In that case, the Fund also recegnises an associzted liability. The transferred asset and the associated
iability are measured on a basis ithat reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

Continuing involvemnent that takes the form of a guarantse over the transferred asset is measured at the

lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Fund
could be required fo repay.
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3.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{d) Financial instrumenis (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Fund measures loss allowances 2t 2n amount aqual to lifelime ECLs, except for the following, which
are. measurad at 12-months ECLs:

. fnancizl assets thai are determinad to have low credit risk at the reporting date: and

° other financial assets for which credit risk (Le the risk of default occurring over the expectad e of
the assat) has not increased significanily since initial recognition.

When determining whether the cradit risk of 2 financial assst has increased significantly since initiat
recognition and when estimating £GLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevent and available without undue cosi or effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitative
inforration and analysis, based on the Fund's historical expetiznce and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Fund assumes that the cradit risk on & financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past dus.

The Fund considers a financial asset to be in defaul when the financial asset is more than 30 days past
due.

The Fund considers a financial assst to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is
squivaient fo the globally understeod definition of ‘investmant grade’. The Fund considers this to be Baal
for Moody's rating or BBB- as per Standard and Poor's rating.

{ ifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default svents aver the expecied [ife of a financial
instrument.

12.maonth ECLs are the poriion of ECLs that resuit from the default events that are possible within the 12

months afier the reporting date {or shorter period if the expecied life of the instrument is less than 12
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating the ECLs is the maximum coniraciual peried over
which the Fund is exposed to credit risk,

easurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credil iosses are measured as the present
value of ali cash shorifalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due {o the enfity in accordance with
the coniract and cash flows that the Fund expects to receive).

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Fund is required to assess whether financial asseis carried at amortised cost
are creditimpaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired” when one or more evenis that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
(dy Financial instruments {Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets {Continued)
Credit-impairad financial assets (Confinued)}

Svidence that 2 fnancial 2ssat is creditimpaired includes the foliowing cbservable data:

s Significant financial difficulty of the borrower o issuer,
. A brzach of coniract such as default or baing more than 30 days past dus; or
e it is probabiz that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presantation of allowances for ECLs in the statement of financial position.

Prasentation of sllowsncas for financial assets measurad at amorlised cost, are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of assais.

Write-off policy

A financia! asset is written off when there is no reasonable expeciation of recoverning the contractual cash
flows. Financial assate writien off may stili be subject to enforcement acfivities under the Fund's racovery
procedures. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss,

Finaricial liabifities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financizl fiabilities comprise of other payables, which zre measured at amortised cost.

Subsequeant measurement

The measurement of financial lizbilities depends on their classification, s describad beiow:

Gihar cavables

Accounts payable are siated 2t amortisaed cost using the effective interest method.

Effective interest metiod

The effective interest method is & meathod of calculating the amorlised cost of a financiat liability and o7
zllocating interest expense over the relevent peried. The effective interest rate is ths rate that exaclly
discounts esfimated future cash payments {including all fzes and poinis paid or received that form an
integral part of the interast rate, transaction cosis and other premium or discounts) through the expected life
of the finencial lisbility. or (where appropriate} a shorier period, to the net carrying amount on iniiial
racogniton.

Derecogpition

A financial fiability is derscognised when the obligation under the ligbility is discharged or cancelled or
expires, When an existing financiza! lizbility is replaced by another from the sams lender on substantially
difierent terms, or the terms of an existing liability are subsientially modified, such an exchange of
modification is weated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 2 new liabiiiy. The
difference in the raspective carrying amounts is recegnised in the staiemens of profit or loss
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3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

{d} Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Offsetting of financizl instruments

Financial assets and financial ligbilities are ofisel and the net amount is reported in the stsiement of
financial position if there is 2 currently enforceable legal right fo offset the recognised amounts and there i3
2n intention 1o setlie on 2 net basis, 1o realise the assets and settie the liabilities simulfanecusly.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial insttuments traded in active markets at reporting date is based on their quoted
price or binding dealer price quotaiions.

For all other financial assets net traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation fechnigues include: using recent amm's lengih market
transactions: reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis making as much use of available and supportable market data 25 possible.

An analysis of falr value instruments and further detalls as o how they are measured are provided in Note
All @sssis and liabllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemenis are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

® Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from ouoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markats Tor identical 2ssets or llabilitiss;
= Level 2 fair valug measurements are those derived from inputs other than guoted prices inciuded

within Level 7 that are observable for the asset or iiebility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
{i.e. derived from prices); and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liabllity that are not based on observable market data (Unobservabie inputs).

For assais and fiebilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Fund
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing ihe
categarisation {based on the lowest level input that is significant o the fair value measurement as a wholg)
at the beginning of each reporiing period.

(e} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank.

(f}  Provisicns

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has 2 present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of 2
past event, it is probable that an outffow of resources embodying economic benefits will be requirad to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the chligation. Where the Fund
expecis some or alf of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separaie asset
but only when the reimbursement is viriually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in
statement of profit or loss and cther comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
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3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED}
{f) Provisions {Continued)}

I the effect of the time value of manay is material, provisions are discounted using a currant pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate. the risks spaciic to the ligbility. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision dus to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(g) Redeemable units

Classification of redeemable units

fadeemable unils are classified 2s squity instruments when:

- The radezmable units entitle the holder 1o a pro rata share of the Fund's net assats in the eveni of the

Fund's liguidation.

- The redsemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to 2l other classes of
instruments.

- All redeemable units in the class of insirumenis that is subordinate to all other classes of instruments
have identical feaiures,

- The red=emable units do not include any contractual obligation to dsliver cash or anoiher financial
assel other than the holder's rights to a pro rata shars of the Fund's nat assets.

. The total expected cash flows alfributable to the redesmable units over the life of the instrument are
hased substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assels or the change in the
fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument.

In addition to the redeemable uniis having 2l the above fealures, the Fund must have no other financial
instrument or contract that has:

- Total cash fiows based substantially on the profit or loss, the changs in the recognised net assels of
the changs in the fair value of the recognised and unrecagnised net assets of tha Fund.

- The efiect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the holders of redesmable units.

The Fund continsously assesses the classification of the redeemable units. If the redeemable units cease
to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify
them as fnancial labifies and measure them at fair velus at the date of reclassification, with any
differances from the previous carrying amount recognised in equity. If the redeemable units subsequently
have all the features and meei the conditions to be classifisd as equity, the Fund will reclessify them as
equity instruments and measure them at ihe carrying amount of the liabiliies at the date of the
reclassification.

The Fund classified its redeemable units as equity as it meets the above features and also the Fund does
not have any contraciual opligation to repurchase or radeem for cash or other financial asset.

The issuance, acquisition and cancellation of redeemable units are accounted for as equily transactions.
Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in equily.
(n) Related parties

Parties zre considered to be ralated to the Fund if they have ihe ability, directly or indirecily, to control the
Fund or exercise significant influence over the Fund, Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Fund's financial staiements requires management fo make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseis and liabiliies. and the
disclosure of cont ingant liabilifies. Uncertainties about these assumptions and estimates could result in
suicomes that require & material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assat or habiliy affected in
future periods.

Judgements

in the process of appiying the Fund's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgement, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial slatements:

gy Determinafion of funclional currency

The primary objective of the Fund is to generate returns in MUR, its capital-raising currency. The liquidity
of the Fund is managed on & day-ic-gay basis in MUR. The Fund's performance is evalugted in MUR.
Therefore management considers MUR as the currency that most faithiully represents the ecenomic effact
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions.

by Going concem

The Manager of the Fund has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is
satisfied that the Furd has ihe resources to conlinue in business for the foreseeable Tuture, Furthermore,
the Manager is not awars of any material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Fund's
ahility to confinue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to e prepared on the
going concen Hasis.

Estimate and Assumption

At the reporiing date, there are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and ligbiliies within the next financial year.

5. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The investmeni objective of the Fund is to seek significant long-term capital growih by investing in a

broadly diversified portiolio comprising of equily shares and equily related securities in both the local and
foreign stock marketls.

The Manager will

(a) Ensure that investments are in all respecis reasonable and proper.
(b) Exercise high standard of diligence and act prudently with utmost good faith.
(¢) Seek proper and competent advice wherever deesmed necassary.

}

(d} Use appropriats risk mangasment and risk controlled techniques 0 mitigate inherent risks.
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5 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The financia! instruments in which the Fund mey invast will include inter alia local or foreign eguities,
equity linked securities, unit frusts, mutual funds and other collective investment schemes, fixed incoms

securities, money market instruments and cash.

The cepital of the Fund consists of units denominated in Maurilian Rupee and are redeemable at the
option of the Unit holder based on the net asset value.

{(a) Movement in units during the year

2021 2020
No of units MUR No of units MUR
AL Q1 Juiy 10,180,882 105,143,610 10,078,828 103,801,284
Linits created 583,462 7,686,556 996,731 11,480,679
Units redeemad {131,449) {1,489,118) {894,878) (10,148.,353)
At end of year 10.712.685 111.331.448 10,180.682 105,143.810
(b} Netassetvalue per unit
2021 2020
Sefore distribution
Nei Asset Value (MUR} 144,713,478 108,089,758
Net units created 10,712,698 10,180,682
Net asset value per unit 13.51 10.72
(¢} Prices perunit
Issue price 13.64 10.83
Redamption price 13.37 10.62

Unitholdars have the rights to recsive an equal share of dividends and fo a share pro-rata to their number
of units held in the distribution of the surpius ass2is of the Fund on winding up.

8. THER RECEIVABLES

2024 2020

MUR MUR
Dividend receivabie 772,284 140,008
Disposal procesads receivable 31,128 138,804
Subscription receivable - 819,752
Prepayments 28,098 28,118
831.510 924 683

The carrying value of other receivables approximates its fair value znd is receivable within 3 months.
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Local Foreign Total
MUR MUR MUR
At 01 July 2012 56,994,831 437298,848 110,283,679
Additions 20,006,313 240,873,023 60,879,336
Disposals {12,486,881) (50,233,033) (62,728,914}
Fair valus (loss)f gain (17.485.671) 7.888,242 {8,587,429}
At 30 June 2020 57,018,582 41,827,080 08,845 672
At 01 July 2020 57,018,592 41,827,080 93,845,672
Additions 12,812,423 18,851,915 31,664,338
Disposals (6,770,387)  (24,460,1 35) (31,230,502}
Fair valug gain 14,868,325 17,693,586 298,681,811
AL 30 June 2021 75,048,273 53,912,448 128,961,415

7{a). Financial zssets at air value through sther comprehensive income are further analysad as foliows:

Local equity and equity-related instruments FairValues  Fair Values
2021 2020
MUR MUR

ABC Banking Corporation Limited 465,952 511,440
Semaris Lid 236,040 247,280
Ascencia Ltd 3,140,750 3.726,450
CIEL Limited 261,543 431 B85
CIM Financial Services Lid 2,208,856 1,134,048
MUA Lid 2.707.580C 1,892,800
Gamma Civic Ltd 2,703,132 1,880,176
1BL Lid 5,854,280 68,528,152
[NNODIS Lid 3,235.095 3,091,313
Lux Island Resoris Lid 1,018,700 865,200
Mauritius Commercial Bank Lid 26,262,600 12,988,200
Mauritius Oif Refineries Lid 492,000 708,500
New Maurifius Hotels Ltd 1,185,072 1,182,448
Omnicane Lid 81,270 61,820
Rogers And Co Lid 1,514,678 1,680,254
SEM Holdings Lid 7.574,274 5,498,055
Sun Resoris LidMauritius 1.089,363 879,490
The Lux Collective Lid 52,109 62 109
United Basalt Product 2,518,650 1,734,750
Phoenix Beverages Lid 3,750,000 -

Lavasione Lic¢ - 279,172
SBM India Fund Class A 4,661,809 2,870,400
SBM Capital Protecied Note - 1,280,000
SBM Africa Value Fund Cless A - 41,970

75,048,873 57,018,592
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7{a). Financial asseis al tair value through other comprehensive income are further analysed as follows:

{Continued)
Foreign equity and equity-related instruments Fair Values  Fair Values
2021 2020
MUR MUR
Invasco Dynamic Software E1F 1,864,917 -
Einancial Select Sector SPDR 1,240,803 -
Technoiogy Select Secior SPOR 2,516,622 -
T Rowe Price Global Focused Growth Equity "A” 5,439,321 -
7 Rawe Price US Smalier Companies Equily "A" 863,138 -
iShares Core MSC! World UCITS 778,203 -
iShares MSCI World ETF 5,474,665 6,553,807
1Shares MSCI ACW! Index Fund (US} 7,288,247 5,658,915
i8hares U.S. Medical Davices 1,885,813 1,166 444
Vanguerd S&P 500 ETF 8,384,889 6.231.203
Vanguard Utilities ETF {US) - 1,138,186
MSS US Advaniage "A" 5,801,946 5,707,391
MSS Global Advantage "A" - 5,386,216
Fidefity Funds - Asia Paciiic Opportunities "A" (USD) 5.892,807 4870,110
Eidelity Funds - European Dynamic A" (EUR) 5,484,071 -
Fidelity Funds - European Larger Companies Fund "A" (EUR) - 4,312,108
53,812,446 41,827,680
TOTAL 428,861,419 98,545,672

8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY

IFRS 13 requires disclosures relating to fair value measuremant using a three level fzir value hierarchy.
The Jevel within which the fair velue measurement is categorised In its entirety is determinsd on ihe
hasis of the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurament. Assessing the
significance of a particular input requires judgament, considering iactors specific fo the asset or liability.

Leve! 1 faif valus measuremenis are those derived from guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or lisbilities.

Leval 2 fair vaiue measurements are those derived from inputs ather then cuoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the assei or Esbilily, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inpuis for the
assat or izbility that are not based on observeble market data (unobservable inputs). '

The foilowing table provides an analysis of local and foreign investments grouped into fevel 1 fo 2 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Einancia! assefs at fair value through other comprehensive income.

L evel 1 Levei2 tevel 3 Total

MUR MUR MUR MUR
Local invesiments 70,324,855 4,561,908 62,108 75,048,873
Forsign investments - 53,812,448 - £3,912,446

At 20 June 2021 70,324,955 58,574,355 £§2,909 128,961,418
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g,  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)
Financia! assets at fair value through other cormprehensive income!
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total
MUR MUR MUR MUR
Local invesiments 52,964,113 3.892,37C 62,408  57.018,502
Foreign investiments - 41.827.080 - 41,827,080
£ 30 June 2020 52,064,113 45,819,450 62,109 98,845,872

There has bean no transfers betwaen lavels.

The following ‘ebie analyses the Fund's concentration of equity price i the Fund's equity porticlio by

geographical distribution:

t ocal and foreign invesimenis

Mauritius
United Siates of Americz
Luxembourg

3. OTHER PAYAELES

Manager's fees

Administraior's faes

Registry's fees

Trustee's fees

Custodizn's fees

Auditors' fees

Tax advisor's fees

Other professional fees payable
Entry fees pavable

2021 2020
MUR % MUR %
75,048,873 58.49% 57,018,592 57.68%
48,448,375 37.57%  37,514.972 37.96%
5,464,071 4.24%  4.312.108 4.36%
128,961,418 100.00% _ 98,845,672 100.00%
2021 2020
MUR MUR
113,712 95,008
14,214 11,876
14,214 11,878
22,145 54988
6,055 17.812
126,500 123,625
20,700 14,950
8,525 8,625
238 515
326,403 336,275

The carrying amount of other payzbles approximaie their fair value,

Other payables are unsecurad, intgrest free and payable within 3 months.
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10,

11

12.

13.

TAXATION

income fax is calculated at the rate of 15% {2020:15%; on profit for the period as adjusted for income
133 purposes.

(2) Income tax jiahility

2021 2020

MUR MUR
AL 01 July 73,628 308
Charge for the year - 52,838
Tax paid {50,830} (4,642)
{Overy/Under pravision in previous year {22,788} 24,822
Al 3C June - 73.628

As 2t 20 June 2021, the Fund has tax losses of MUR 15,970 (2020: Nif) which can be carried forwerd tll
year of assessment 2025.

{b) Reconciliation of tex charge

20214 2020
MUR MUR
{Loss)/ Profit before tax {278,828) 1,548.649
Tax on accounting profit a: the tax rate of 15% {41,824} 232,297
Tax effect of:
Exempt income {120,531} (288,283)
Nor-taxable income {52,663) (120,770}
Nen deductible expenses 282,158 299,385
Deierred 1ax assat not recegnised 2,862 -
{Over)/Under provision in previous year (22,798} 24,822
Tax (income)/ expensa {22,758) 77,461
Tax charge for the year - 52,638
{OveriUnder provision in previous year {22.798) 24,822
{22,798) 77,461
Dividend income
2021 2020
MUR MUR
Locat 1,089,464 1,663,225
Farsign 225,928 323,326
Total 1,315,393 1,986,551

MANAGER'S FEES

Manager's fees are computed dafly based on 1% p.2 of net asset value of the Fund {2020: 1% p.a of
NAV) and are payable monthly in arrears.

TRUSTEE'S FEES

Trustes's fess are compuied daily based on 0.09775% p.a of net asset value of the Fund plus VAT
(2020: 6.09775% p.a of NAV) and the fees are payable monthly in arrsars.



SBM GROWTH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 26.

14.

18,

7.

REGISTRY FEES

Registry's fees are compuied dady based on 0.125% p.a of net asset value of the Fund {2020: 0.125%
p.8 of NAV) and tne feas are payable monthly in arrears.

CUSTODIAN FEES

Custodian's fees are computed dzily based on 0.06% p.a of investment value of the Fund (2020: 0.08%
.2 of investmant value) pius wransaction charges of MUR 100 for each Jocal trade and EUR 20 for 2ach
foreign trade (20200 MUR 100 for sach local trade and EUR 20 for each forsign trads) =nd are payable
monthly in arrears,

ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

Adminisiraior’s fees are compuied daily based on 0.125% p.a of net asset value of the Fund {2020
0.125% p.2 of NAY) and {ha fees are paysble monthly In arrgars.

ENTRY FEE AND EXIT FEE

On the issue of units, n entry fee of 1% of the net assets vaiue (2020 1% of NAV) of the Fund par unit
is paid by the unithoider to the Fund and. on the repurchase of units an exit fee of 4% of the net assel
value (2020: 1% of NAV) of the Fund per unit is paid by the unitholder o the Fund. The sums collscted
ara then remitied to the Manager.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the yesr ended 30 June 2021 the Eund transacted with related entities, Details of the nature.
volume of fransactions and balancas with the entities ars shown below.

2021 2020
MUR MUR
DTOS Trustees Ltd
Trustee's fees payable 22,145 54,968
Trusies's fees SxXpense 147,088 112,289
SBM Mauritius Asset Managers L1d
Manager's fzes payable 113,712 ©5,608
Manager's fees expanse 4,188,281 1.149.583
SBM Fund Services Lid
Administrator's fees payable 14,214 11,876
Adminisiraior's fees expanse 149,785 143,678
Registry fess payable 14,214 11,876
Registry fees expense 148,785 143,679
SBM Bank (Mauritius) Ltd
Custodian fees payable 8,055 17,812
Custodian fees expense 140,310 325,818
Bank balances heid with custodian 11,760,058 9,418,821

Investment in ultimate holding company
SBM Holdings Lid 7,574,274 £.488,0585

No compensztion was paid to key management personnel during the year.

Outstanding baiances zt the year end are unsecured, interest iree and seitlement occurs in cash. There
have been no guaranieas provided or received for any refated party receivable or payable.
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19.

18.1

18.2

8.3

19.4

19.5

13.8

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management

Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities and is managed through a2 process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring sutject to risk limits and other controls put in place at the investment
manager company level. The Fund is exposed to market risk (which Includes currency risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it hoids, The Fund has invesimeant
guidelines that set out its overall business sirategies and its folerance for risk.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accouniing policies and methods zdopted (including the criterla for recognition,
the bases of measurement, and the bases for recognition of income and expenses), for each cless of
financial asset, financial fizbility and equity instrument are disclosed in notes to ihe financial sialemsnis.

Fair value

The carrying amount of the other receivables and other payables approximate their fair value because of
{heir short term nature.

Categories of financial instruments

2021 2020
MUR MUR
Financial assets
Financial assais at fair value through ofher comprahensive income 128,861,418 98,845,672
Cash and cash eguivalents 15,246,852 8,742,307
Oiher receivables at amortised cost 803,412 526,564

145,011,783 108,464,543

Financial lizbilities
Oiher payablas at amortised cost 326,403 339.275

Risk management

The Fund's credit risk is managsd by the Manager subject to the Fund's estabiished policy, procedures
and corfrols. The credit exposure is monitored by the investment team and reporied o the Fund's board
and Investment Committee on a quarterly basis. There are internal Bmits with respect to single issuer
exposure, maximum sector exposurs and the Fund will hold 2 diversified portiolio of securities in
mitigating overall portiefia credit risk. Investmeni~grade securities are mostly targeted in managing cradit
risk but credit migration is monitored.

Miarket risk

Market risk is the risk of loss resulting from adverse movement th market rates or prices such as inierest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

Foreign currency risk

The Fund invests in securities, including maintenance of cash that are denominated in such currencies
other than in Mauritian Rupee ("MUR"). Accerdingly, the valus of the Fund's assets may be aliecied

favourably or unfavourably by fiuctusfions in currency rates. Therefore, the Fund will necessarily be
subject to foreign exchange risk.



SBM GROWTH FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 28.

19,

19.6

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
Market risk {Continued)
Foreign currency risk {Continued)

The currency profile of the Fund's financial assets and lizbilities is summarised as follows:

Financial Financial Financial Financial

assets lizbilities assels liabilities

2021 2021 2020 2020

MUR MUR MUR MUR

Mauritius Rupee 86,147.078 328,403 63.004,331 335,278

United States Dollar 50,872,876 - 39.820,334 -
Euro 7,879,411 - 5,281,882 -
British Pounds 18,163 - 15,246 -
Australian Dollar 294,258 - 252,750 -

145,011,783 326,403 105,484,543 338,275

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The ollowing table dernonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate,
with ail other variables held constant, on the Fund's profit before tax and equity.

2021 2020
Increase! Effect on Increase/ Efiecton
decrease  profit before  decrease profit before
tax and equity tax and ecuily
% MUR % MUR

United States Dollar 10%  (5,087,288) 10% (3,982,033)
~10% 5,087,288 -10% 3,982,033
Eurg 10% (767,241) 10% (629.188)
-10% 767,941 ~10% 829,183
British Pounds 10% {1,818) 10% {1,525)
-10% 1,816 ~10% 1,525
Australian Dollar 10% (29,425) 10% {25,275)
-10% 28,425 -10% 25,275

Eguity price rigk

The Fund is exposed to the risk thet the value of its investment securities will fluctuate as 2 result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are ceused by faciors specfiic to the individual securiy

or factors afiecting all securities tradad in the market, Markst risk is managed through diversification of
the Invastment porifolio.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Market risk (Continued)
FPrice sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure o aquily price risks at the reporiing
date and assesses the impact of a 5% change in the price of local and foreign investment.

Change in
price by 2021 2020
% MUR MUR
Profit before tax +5 6,448,071 4042 2584

Azl in equity prices by 5% would have resulied in an equal but opposite impacet on net assets.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparly to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Fund
by {ailing ic discharge an obligation. The Fund is exposad io the risk of creditrelated losses that can
occur as 2 result of 2 counterparly or issuer being unable or unwilling to honour its contractual
obligations. These credit exposures exist within cash and cash eguivalents.

The Manager's policy is to closely monitor the creditworthiness of the Fund's counterparties by reviewing
their credit ratings, financial statements and press releases on a regular basis.

Cred# risk disclosures are segmented based on whethar the underlying financial instrument is subject to
IFRS £'s impairment disclosures or not.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents

impairmeant on cash and cash squivalents has been measured on 5 12-month expectad [oss bhasis and
refiecis the short maiurifies of exposures.The Fund considers that these exposures have low credit fisk
based on the external credit rating of the counterparties. The Fund has assessed that ECL on cash and
cash equivalents is no! considered to be material.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Fund will encounier difficully in meeting obligations associated
with financizl fizbilities that are setfled by deiivering eash or enother financial asset. Exposure to Bguidity
risk arises bacause of the possibiliiy that the Fund could be required fo pay its liabilities or redeem iis
units earlier than expected. The Fund is exposed to cash redemptions of its redesmable units on a
regular basis. Uniis are redeemable a! the holder's option basad on the Fund's NAY per unit 2t the fime of
redemption, calculated in accordance with the Fund's prospectus.

The Manzager may limit the tolal number of the units in the Fund that may b2 redeemed on any business
day to 10% of the outstanding unils in the Fund.

The Fund's policy is 1o salisfy redemption requests by the following means {in decrzasing order of
prigrity):

- Szarching for new invesiors

- Withdrawal of cash deposits

- Disposal of highly liquid assets (L.e., shor-term, Jow-risk debt investments)
- Disposal of othar 2sseis
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18, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
19,8 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Fund invests primarily in marketable securities and other financial instruments which, under normal
market conditions, are readily convertible to cash. In addition, the Fund's policy is to maintain sufiiciant
cash and cash equivalents to meet normal oparating requirements and expacied rsdemplion requests.

Financial lizbilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting peried 10 the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has 2 choice of when the amount is paid, the liability is
allocated to the earliast period in which the Fund can be required o pay.

Financial 885815

Anzlysis of equity securities into maturity groupings is based on ihe expecied date on which these assats
will be realised, For other assets, the analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining peried
from the end of the reporting period fo the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the expected date on
which ihe assets wili be realised.

The following sable summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial fiabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The table alsc analyses the maturity profile of the Fund's financial assels
(undiscounied where approprizte) in order to provide a compiete view of the Fund's contractual
commitments and liquidity.

{ess than Over 5 No stated

1 year 1to 2years 2fo 5years years wmaturity Total
2021 MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
Cash and ¢ash equivalznis 15,246,952 - - - - 15,246 952
Other receivables 803,412 303,412
Financial esssts at fair value
thraugh Clher
comprehensive incoma - - . - 128,861,418 128,861,419
Total financial assets 16,050,364 - - - 128,961,413 145,011,783

ther payables 328,403 - - ~ - 328,403
Total financial lizbilities 328,403 - - - - 325,403
Liquidity gap 15,723,361 - - - 128,961,419 144,685,380
Lass than Over & No staed

1yesr Tio2vears 2io5years years maturity Total
2020 MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR MUR
Cash and cash equivalents 8.742.307 - - - - 9,742,307
Other receivables 586,554 856,564
Finzncial assets 2t fair value
through Qther
comprehensive income - - - - 95,845,672 G8,845672
Total financial assets 10,638,571 - - - 28,845,672 105,484,543
Other payables 338,275 - - - - 339,275
Total financia! izbilities 338,278 - - . - 338,275

Liguicity gap 10,295 595 - - - 98,845,572 109,145,268
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [CONTINUED)
Excessive risk concentration

Concentration indicates the relative sensitivity of the Fund's performance io developments affecting @
particutar industry or geographical location. Concentration of risks arises when a nymber of financial
instruments or contracts are entered into with the same zounterparty or when a number of counterparties
are sngaged in similer business sciivities, or activities in the same gsographical region, of have similar
sconomic feaures that would cause thelr ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly afiected by
changes in econimic features that would cause their ability 1o mest contractual obligations to ba simitarly
affected by changes in 2conomic political or cther conditions. Concentrations of liquidity risk may arise
from repayment terms of financial liabifities. Conosnirations of foreign exchange risk may arise if the Fund
has 2 significant nat open position in a singie foreign currency. In order to avoid excessiva concentration
of risk, the Fund's policies and procedures inciude specific guidelines o focus on maintaining a diversified
portiolic. The investment manager s instrucied to reduce exposure o excessive risk concentrations.

The Fund shall not invest more than 20% of iis Net Asset Value in secuitties issued by a single 1ssuer {a
company ar athar corporate entity including ihe subsidiaries there of} &t the time of purchase.

The Fund shall not hold mors than 20% of any class of security listed or uniisted, issuad by a singls issuer.
COVID-18 IMPACT ASSESSMENT

The global public health crisis, the Covid-19, led 1o the shutdown of the giobal economy and prompted a
global equity market collapse in March 2020. The global policy response to cushion the coronavirus shock
has been unprecedented in terms of speed and size as policymakers supporied the economies by
committing to keep rates low and snabling an increasingly accommodaiive monetary as weill as fiscal
policies.

The pandemic’s near-term evolulion. containment measures, positive vaccing developments, dovish
central banks, however, improved market sentimant and pushed equity markeis to all-ime highs by the
end of financial year 2021 While the unprecedenied policy response was needed to cushion the adverse
impacts of the Covid-19, the monetary and fiscal policies along with supply-chzin disruptions raised
inflationary pressures. Exiended high inflation rates may impact ine path of interest rates, and hence
equity and debt markets, but drastic policy changes are not expecied in the near-term.

While markets have rebounded strongly in FY21, the potential impacts from further spread of the virus
daspite the veccination roll-outs are difficull to assess and may vary across countries, markets and
sectors. Any public health emergency, including any outbreak of Covid-18 mutations or other existing or
new epidemic diseases, or the threat thereof, and the resulting financial and econemic market uncertainty
could have a significant adverse impact on the Fund including the fair value of its investments. External
factors remain beyond the Investment Manager's control and cannet be forecasted but they have adverse
impacis on the value of investments. With respect to SBM Growth Fund, its strategic allocation is 60%
domestic eguilies and 40% foreign eguities.

Listed equities and equity-related securitiss are valued at feir value using guoted prices. The sconomic
impact of Covid-12 is generally reflected in market price of those securifies. Depending on the sector and
gecgraphy in which the companies, the Covid-18 had difierent magnitude on sfock prices. Given the
diversification sirategy, the risk is not concentrated and the portiolic impact is relatively lower compared 1o
concerirated strategies. As part of its process, the prices of those securities are closely menitored. Since
the Fund is invested in domestic listed stocks, international mutual funds and ETFs, the Manager does not
anticipate funding liquidity and asset liquidity risks in the current conditions. The MUR remained relzatively
weak during the financial year and significantly depreciated towards the end of June 2021, As a result, the
carrying value of international investments increased. The Invesiment Manager seeks to limit its exposure
In exotic foreign currencies in managing FX risks.
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COVID-18 IMPACT ASSESSMENT [CONTINUED)

The Fund did not experience any disruption in terms of the operations during the year due io the work-
from-home practices from the different funciionaries. There was no increase in direct cosls as conditions
under the existing contraciual agreements continued io prevail.

Overall the Fund has not heen impacted in terms of significant redemptions as there has been more issug
of urits. The Investment Manager monitors closely the liquidity position of the Fund.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There has been no other materigl events afier the reporting date which would require disciosure or
adjustment to the financial staiements for the year ended 30 June 2021,



